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National Foods Limited (NFL), founded in 1970, is Pakistan’s leading multicategory food 
company with over 250 different products, across 13 categories. NFL holds ISO 9001, ISO 
18001, ISO 22000 and HACCP certi�cations coupled with SAP Business Technology to drive 
its strong commitment to quality and management excellence. 

In alignment with NFL’s Vision of becoming a Rs. 50 billion company, we constantly Inspire 
New Traditions and are already on our way to be recognized as an internationally renowned 
brand in over 37 countries across 5 continents worldwide. This has been facilitated with the 
aim of keeping traditions through new methods. 

NFL is dedicated to improving the well-being of our society through continuous development 
of innovative food products and changing the way in which the modern household cooks food. 
We are also dedicated to infusing new initiatives into the society through our wide range of 
Corporate Social Responsibility programs. 

Our Story
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To be a Rs. 50 billion food company in the convenience food segment by launching products 
and services in the domestic and international markets that enhance lifestyle and create value 
for our customers through management excellence at all levels.

Vision & Mission
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The Directors of National Foods Limited are pleased to present the unaudited 
financial results of the Company, which include both stand-alone (subject to 
limited review by the external auditors) and consolidated financial statements, for 
the half year ended December 31, 2018.

Business Performance Overview

Operating and financial performance

The Company delivered strong topline and bottom-line H1. Net sales of the 
Group has continued its growth momentum posting a steady growth of 18% with 
core business posting growth of 9% (excluding the reclassification impacts 
mentioned below). This has been mainly a result of brand and consumer led 
initiatives carried forward with increased momentum in the current year in the 
Pakistan operations and partly due to the currency devaluation, which has 
positively impacted the results of International Division and A1 Cash & Carry.
 
Ignoring the impact of IFRS 15 mentioned in detail below, gross margins of the 
group and subsidiary improved by 120 bps and 200 bps respectively. The 
improvement has been a result of improved product mixes and price increases 
taken on the backdrop of inflationary & currency devaluation impacts on the cost 
to produce and sell.

Director Report
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Key financial numbers of the Group for the fiscal year are summarized below:
Amounts in PKR Million

Marketing and Promotion

• A new Recipe Mixes campaign under the tag line “Nayi Soch ke Naye Zaiqe” 
was launched with multiple touch points focusing on empowering household 
women.

 
• The Always On model has been implemented with Recipe Mixes through the 

TV and Digital platforms to fuel create brand following and help drive 
volumes for season specific variants. The Thematic campaign airing was 
followed by Haleem campaign and Fish masala airing.

• A Back to School consumer promotion campaign was launched for Ketchup 
in August, in which free lunch boxes were given on the purchase of Tomato 
Ketchup.

• In the Sauces portfolio, we launched a new variant, Garlic Mayo, in Oct’18. 
The launch will be followed by a well-integrated marketing campaign 
including TV airing, planned to go live in Jan’19. 

* Net sales for the current period incorporate the impact of first-time prospective application of IFRS 15 “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers” resulting in reclassification of trade spend from distribution costs to net sales.

** This includes amoutisation of Rs. 5 million (2018: Rs. 5 million) on intangible recoginised on consolidation of A1 Bags 
& Suppliers Inc.

• We also launched three popular jam variants – Pineapple, Black Currant & 
Strawberry – in smaller 200g jars. The idea was to encourage trials by 
introducing a lower price proposition and to increase consumption of 
multiple variants.

 
• Furthermore, our Chinese range was converted to 800 ml PET bottles 

following the launch of same by the competition. Two of our variants, Chili 
Sauce and Soya Sauce were also introduced in 800 ml bottles, which were 
initially only available in smaller SKUs.

 
Other key accomplishments

• National Foods Limited has been awarded the ’Recognizing Gender 
Diversity at Workplace: Special Recognition, Local Industry’ by the CFA 
Society Pakistan. National Foods Limited works actively to build an inclusive 
workforce at all levels of their organization, based on the UN SDG of Gender 
Equality. The award also evaluates the initiatives taken by NFL to empower 
the female population of the country. The Company has been running 
initiatives such as Project HOPE, Elevate and Aagahi Adult Literacy Program, 
through which over 80,000 women have been trained so far.

• A recent case study, ‘Retaining Top Talent Through Family Friendly Policies’ 
published by International Finance Corporation, a member of the World Bank 
Group, has identified National Foods Limited as having family friendly 
policies for their employees.

Future outlook

 The management anticipates an impact of currency devaluation and 
inflationary pressure on its cost to produce in the second half of the fiscal 
year. However, adequate measures have already been taken and 
implemented to mitigate inflationary pressures – both in terms of pricing and 
cost control measures. The Company remains committed to drive the 
business fundamentals and improve / maintain its market leadership position 
in all major categories in the second half of the fiscal year as well. The 
management is confident of achieving its target for financial year 2019.

Acknowledgement

 I would like to express the Board’s sincerest gratitude to all internal and 
external stakeholders for their continued commitment and trust.

On behalf of Board of Directors
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To the members of National Foods Limited

Report on review of Interim Financial Statements 

Introduction
We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim unconsolidated 
statement of financial position of National Foods Limited as at 31 December 2018 
and the related condensed unconsolidated interim statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, condensed interim unconsolidated statement of 
changes in equity, and condensed interim unconsolidated statement of cash 
flows, and notes to the financial statements for the six-month period then ended 
(here-in-after referred to as the “interim financial statements”). Management is 
responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim financial 
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to 
express a conclusion on these financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review
We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review 
Engagements 2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 
Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of interim financial statements 
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and 
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A 
review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to 

Independent Auditor’s 
Review Report
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obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that 
might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the accompanying interim financial statements is not prepared, in all 
material respects, in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.
 
Other matter 
The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 in 
the interim financial statements have not been reviewed and we do not express 
a conclusion on them.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s 
report is Moneeza Usman Butt.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 19 February 2019
Karachi
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Unconsolidated Condensed Interim 
Financial Information
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ASSETS
Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 4,474,604        4,150,606        
Intangibles 71,166             85,652             
Long-term investment - subsidiary 31,719             31,719             
Long-term deposits 39,619             40,473             

4,617,108        4,308,450        
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 55,387             41,880             
Stock in trade 6 3,307,071        3,072,291        
Trade debts 909,395           889,385           
Advances 123,177           102,144           
Trade deposits and prepayments 74,970             36,863             
Other receivables 10,630             5,764               
Sales tax refundable -                  121,424           
Cash and bank balances 386,753           229,728           

4,867,383        4,499,479        

9,484,491        8,807,929        

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and reserves
Authorised share capital

1,000,000,000 (30 June 2017: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each 5,000,000        1,000,000        

Share capital
    Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 621,644           518,034           
Revenue reserve
   Unappropriated profit 3,316,401        3,140,259        

3,938,045        3,658,293        

Non - current liabilities
Deferred taxation - net 169,693           117,010           
Deferred liabilities 47,048             42,366             

216,741           159,376           
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 2,530,389        2,330,786        
Contract liabilities 155,245           -                  
Short term borrowings 7 1,706,248        2,148,720        
Unclaimed dividend 75,980             18,323             
Long-term finance classified as current - secured 8 493,152           193,152           
Mark-up accrued 11,183             14,766             
Taxation - net 314,289           284,513           
Sales tax payable 43,219             -                  

5,329,705        4,990,260        

9,484,491        8,807,929        

Commitments 9

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.
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____________________ ____________________ __________________
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director 

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
For the quarter and six months period ended 31 December 2018
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Note 31 Dec 30 June
2018 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)

____________________ ____________________ __________________
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director 

(Rupees in '000)

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position (Unaudited)
As at 31 December 2018

Six months ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

Sales 10 3,598,312      3,291,362     7,914,001      7,630,258     

Cost of sales (2,464,493)     (2,216,634)    (5,298,488)     (5,017,397)    
Gross profit 1,133,819      1,074,728     2,615,513      2,612,861     

Distribution costs (621,104)        (716,981)       (1,279,927)     (1,605,270)    

Administrative expenses (264,330)        (257,536)       (503,401)        (407,277)       

Impairment loss on trade debts (5,400)            (50,000)         (5,400)            (50,000)         

Other expenses (24,341)          (11,692)         (60,362)          (46,780)         

Other income 134,295 8,676            148,413 13,264

Operating profit 352,939         47,195          914,836         516,798        

Finance costs (28,846)          (28,378)         (57,102)          (49,164)         

Profit before taxation 324,093         18,817          857,734         467,634        

Taxation 11 (73,059)          (38,603)         (189,456)        (179,032)       

Profit / (loss) after taxation 251,034         (19,786)         668,278         288,602        

Other comprehensive income -                -                -                -                

Total comprehensive income / (loss) 
for the period 251,034         (19,786)         668,278         288,602        

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 12 2.02 (0.16) 5.38 2.32

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

Quarter ended  

--------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------

--------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------

Half Yearly Report December 2018
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____________________ ____________________ __________________
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director 

Consolidated Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)
For the six months period ended 31 December 2018
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____________________ ____________________ __________________
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director 

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Cash Flow Statement (Unaudited)
For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

Issued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up 

capital

Revenue 
reserve - 

unappropriated 
profit

Total 

Balance as at 1 July 2017 518,034          2,661,655          3,179,689        

Total comprehensive income for the six months period
ended 31 December 2017

- Profit for the six months period ended 31 December 2017 -                  288,602             288,602           

- Other comprehensive income for the six months period -                  -                     -                   
ended 31 December 2017

-                  288,602             288,602           
Transactions with owners recorded directly 

in equity - distributions

- Final dividend for the year ended 
30 June 2017 at the rate of Rs. 4.25 per share -                  (440,329)            (440,329)          

Balance as at 31 December 2017 518,034          2,509,928          3,027,962        

Balance as at 1 July 2018 518,034          3,140,259          3,658,293        

Total comprehensive income for the six months
ended 31 December 2018

- Profit for the six months period ended 31 December 2018 -                  668,278             668,278           

- Other comprehensive income for the six months period
ended 31 December 2018 -                  -                     -                   

-                  668,278             668,278           
Transactions with owners recorded directly 

in equity - distributions

- 1 Ordinary shares for each 5 shares held - alloted as 
bonus shares for the year ended 30 June 2018 103,610          (103,610)            -                   

- Final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2018 at the rate of Rs. 3.75 per share -                  (388,526)            (388,526)          

Balance as at 31 December 2018 621,644          3,316,401          3,938,045        

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Note Period ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 13 1,302,005      1,076,640      
Finance cost paid (60,685)          (37,174)          
Income taxes paid (106,997)        (233,010)        
Long term deposits - net 854                (500)               
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,135,177      805,956         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (551,784)        (864,004)        
Purchase of intangible assets (7,477)            (45,342)          
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 54,446           6,821             
Net cash used in investing activities (504,815)        (902,525)        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES

Short term borrowings obtained -                     788,000         
Proceeds from long term finance 300,000         929                
Repayment of short term borrowings (250,000)        (100,000)        
Dividends paid (330,866)        (431,577)        
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (280,866)        257,352         

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 349,496         160,783         
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period (1,068,991)     (897,240)        
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 14 (719,495)        (736,457)        

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in '000)
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For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Financial Information (unaudited)

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS    
 

1.1  National Foods Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 19 February 1970 as a private 
limited company under the Companies Act, 1913 and subsequently converted into a public limited 
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 by special resolution passed in the 
extraordinary general meeting held on 30 March 1988. The Company is principally engaged in the 
manufacture and sale of convenience based food products. It is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 12 / CL - 6, Claremont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi.

 The parent entity of the Company is Associated Textile Consultants (Private) Limited based on control 
model as provided under International Financial Reporting Standards 10 - 'Consolidated Financial 
Statements'.

 The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary named National Foods DMCC ("NF DMCC"). NF DMCC 
was registered on 7 November 2012 in Dubai Multi Commodities Centre (“DMCC”) pursuant to Dubai 
(DMCC) Law No. 4 of 2001 and operates in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) under a trade license 
issued by DMCC. The registered address of the Company is Unit No. R30-26, Floor No. 30, R Serviced 
Offices JLT, Reef Tower, Plot No. 01 Jumeirah Lakes Towers Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

 The primary objective of NF DMCC is to boost export sales of its parent company through trading in food 
stuff and other services.

 NF DMCC also has following two wholly owned subsidiaries:

a) National Epicure Inc.
 National Epicure Inc. ("NEI") was incorporated in Canada on 16 October 2013 under the Canada 

Business Corporations Act. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food products. The 
registered office of the company is situated at 193 Maxome Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, Canada. The 
company is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

 In February 2017, NF DMCC through its further subsidiary NEI acquired 60% shares in A-1 Bags & 
Supplies Inc. ("A-1 Bags"), based in Canada. A-1 Bags is principally engaged in distribution and 
wholesale of food products, disposables, janitorial and sanitation products. Its registered office is situated 
at 6400 Kennedy Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada.

b) National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited

 National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited was incorporated in United Kingdom on 29 May 2013 as a private 
company under the Companies Act, 2006. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food 
products. The registered office of the company is situated at 27 Second Floor, Gloucester Place, London, 
United Kingdom. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

1.2  These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of 
the Company in which investment in subsidiary have been accounted for at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 Statement of compliance

 These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The 
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Financial Information (unaudited)
For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, 'Interim Financial Reporting', issued by the International

 Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 

requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have 
been followed.

2.2 The condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements do not include all the informations and 
disclosures required for annual unconsolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction 
with the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 
30 June 2018.

2.3 Basis of measurement
 These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical 

cost convention, except for the Company's liability under its defined benefit plan which is reported on the 
basis of present value of defined benefit obligations as determined by an independent actuary.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
 The condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements is presented in Pakistan Rupees which is 

also the Company's functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupee except where stated otherwise.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these condensed 
interim unconsolidated financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of these 
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for the 
adoption of new standards effective as of 1 July 2018 as referred to in note 3.4 to these condensed 
interim unconsolidated financial statements.

3.2 NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY
 
 The Company has initially adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 9 

‘Financial Instruments’ from 1 July 2018. The impact of the adoption of these standards and the new 
accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.4 below.

 The Company has early adopted IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' from 1 July 2018 S.R.O. 229 (I)/2019 
issued by the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan deferred the effective date of application of 
IFRS 9 from 1 July 2018 to reporting periods ending on or after 30 June 2019. However, earlier 
application is permitted and compiled with in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial 
statements.

  
 A number of other pronouncements are effective from 1 July 2018 as detailed in Company's annual 

audited unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018, but they do not 
have a material effect on these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements and therefore 
have not been detailed.

3.3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 There are certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to the approved accounting standards 
that will be mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. 
However, currently management considers that these pronouncements will not have any significant 
impact on the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these 
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

3.4 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  
 Explained below is the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and 

early adoption of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on the Company’s condensed interim unconsolidated 
financial statements and also discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 July 
2018, where they are different to those applied in prior periods.

 
 IFRS 15 ‘REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS’
 IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction Contracts' and related interpretations. The 

Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS 15 as allowed under the 
Standard. This method requires the recognition of the cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of 
initially applying IFRS 15 to retained earnings. Accordingly, the information presented for comparative 
period in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have not been restated i.e. it is 
presented, as previously reported under IAS 18 and related interpretations.

 Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a contractual promise to a customer (performance 
obligation) has been fulfilled by transferring control over the promised goods and services to the 
customer. It also specifies the accounting for the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. Management 
has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the 
product has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer. Invoices are generated 
and revenue is recognised on delivery of goods. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped 
to / or and delivered to the customer’s destination / specific location, the risks of loss have been 
transferred to the customer and the customer has accepted the product.

 The consideration which the Company receives in exchange for its goods or services may be fixed or 
variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will 
not occur. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, net 
of returns, amounts collected on behalf of third parties (sales taxes etc), pricing allowances, other trade 
discounts, volume rebates and couponing, price promotions to consumers / customers and any other 
consideration payable to customers. The level of discounts, allowances and promotional rebates are 
recognized, on estimated basis using historical experience and the specific terms of the arrangement, as 
a deduction from revenue at the time that the related sales are recognized or when such incentives are 
offered to the customer or consumer. Sales return provisions are recognized as deduction from revenue 
based on terms of the arrangements with the customer and are included in trade and other payables. No 
asset is recognized for returns as they are not anticipated to be resold. A receivable is recognised when 
the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only 
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

 The Company provides retrospective discounts to its customers on all products purchased by the 
customer once the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the 
contract. A contract liability is recognised for expected discount payable to customers in relation to sales 
made until the end of the reporting period. Further the Company receives short term advances from its 
customers. Prior to adoption of IFRS 15, a provision for sales discounts and advance consideration 
received from customers was included in ‘Trade and other payables’ which now is reclassified in 'Contract 
liabilities' presented separately on statement of financial position. In addition, reclassification has been 
made from 'Trade and other payables' to 'Contract liabilities' for outstanding balance of advance from 
customers and sales discounts payable for prior year to provide comparison. Advances from customers 
amounting to Rs. 65.254 million represents advance consideration received from customers at the 
beginning of the period have been recognised as revenue for six months period ended 31 December 
2018.

 The above is generally consistent with the timing of revenue the Company recognised in accordance with 
the previous standard, IAS 18 and related interpretations. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have 
an impact on the timing of revenue recognition of the Company. However, the amount of revenue to be 
recognized was affected as it change the way Company accounts for consideration payable to 
customers, cost of fulfilling the service (performance obligation) to customer and certain payments to 
customers or consumers, all of which were previously shown as distribution expenses, to be shown as 
deductions from revenue or included in cost of sales.

 The impact of adoption of IFRS 15 on the condensed interim unconsolidated statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income for the six months period ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:
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1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS    
 

1.1  National Foods Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 19 February 1970 as a private 
limited company under the Companies Act, 1913 and subsequently converted into a public limited 
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 by special resolution passed in the 
extraordinary general meeting held on 30 March 1988. The Company is principally engaged in the 
manufacture and sale of convenience based food products. It is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 12 / CL - 6, Claremont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi.

 The parent entity of the Company is Associated Textile Consultants (Private) Limited based on control 
model as provided under International Financial Reporting Standards 10 - 'Consolidated Financial 
Statements'.

 The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary named National Foods DMCC ("NF DMCC"). NF DMCC 
was registered on 7 November 2012 in Dubai Multi Commodities Centre (“DMCC”) pursuant to Dubai 
(DMCC) Law No. 4 of 2001 and operates in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) under a trade license 
issued by DMCC. The registered address of the Company is Unit No. R30-26, Floor No. 30, R Serviced 
Offices JLT, Reef Tower, Plot No. 01 Jumeirah Lakes Towers Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

 The primary objective of NF DMCC is to boost export sales of its parent company through trading in food 
stuff and other services.

 NF DMCC also has following two wholly owned subsidiaries:

a) National Epicure Inc.
 National Epicure Inc. ("NEI") was incorporated in Canada on 16 October 2013 under the Canada 

Business Corporations Act. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food products. The 
registered office of the company is situated at 193 Maxome Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, Canada. The 
company is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

 In February 2017, NF DMCC through its further subsidiary NEI acquired 60% shares in A-1 Bags & 
Supplies Inc. ("A-1 Bags"), based in Canada. A-1 Bags is principally engaged in distribution and 
wholesale of food products, disposables, janitorial and sanitation products. Its registered office is situated 
at 6400 Kennedy Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada.

b) National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited

 National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited was incorporated in United Kingdom on 29 May 2013 as a private 
company under the Companies Act, 2006. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food 
products. The registered office of the company is situated at 27 Second Floor, Gloucester Place, London, 
United Kingdom. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

1.2  These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of 
the Company in which investment in subsidiary have been accounted for at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 Statement of compliance

 These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The 

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, 'Interim Financial Reporting', issued by the International

 Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 

requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have 
been followed.

2.2 The condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements do not include all the informations and 
disclosures required for annual unconsolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction 
with the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 
30 June 2018.

2.3 Basis of measurement
 These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical 

cost convention, except for the Company's liability under its defined benefit plan which is reported on the 
basis of present value of defined benefit obligations as determined by an independent actuary.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
 The condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements is presented in Pakistan Rupees which is 

also the Company's functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupee except where stated otherwise.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these condensed 
interim unconsolidated financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of these 
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for the 
adoption of new standards effective as of 1 July 2018 as referred to in note 3.4 to these condensed 
interim unconsolidated financial statements.

3.2 NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY
 
 The Company has initially adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 9 

‘Financial Instruments’ from 1 July 2018. The impact of the adoption of these standards and the new 
accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.4 below.

 The Company has early adopted IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' from 1 July 2018 S.R.O. 229 (I)/2019 
issued by the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan deferred the effective date of application of 
IFRS 9 from 1 July 2018 to reporting periods ending on or after 30 June 2019. However, earlier 
application is permitted and compiled with in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial 
statements.

  
 A number of other pronouncements are effective from 1 July 2018 as detailed in Company's annual 

audited unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018, but they do not 
have a material effect on these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements and therefore 
have not been detailed.
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3.3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 There are certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to the approved accounting standards 
that will be mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. 
However, currently management considers that these pronouncements will not have any significant 
impact on the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these 
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

3.4 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  
 Explained below is the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and 

early adoption of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on the Company’s condensed interim unconsolidated 
financial statements and also discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 July 
2018, where they are different to those applied in prior periods.

 
 IFRS 15 ‘REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS’
 IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction Contracts' and related interpretations. The 

Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS 15 as allowed under the 
Standard. This method requires the recognition of the cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of 
initially applying IFRS 15 to retained earnings. Accordingly, the information presented for comparative 
period in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have not been restated i.e. it is 
presented, as previously reported under IAS 18 and related interpretations.

 Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a contractual promise to a customer (performance 
obligation) has been fulfilled by transferring control over the promised goods and services to the 
customer. It also specifies the accounting for the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. Management 
has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the 
product has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer. Invoices are generated 
and revenue is recognised on delivery of goods. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped 
to / or and delivered to the customer’s destination / specific location, the risks of loss have been 
transferred to the customer and the customer has accepted the product.

 The consideration which the Company receives in exchange for its goods or services may be fixed or 
variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will 
not occur. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, net 
of returns, amounts collected on behalf of third parties (sales taxes etc), pricing allowances, other trade 
discounts, volume rebates and couponing, price promotions to consumers / customers and any other 
consideration payable to customers. The level of discounts, allowances and promotional rebates are 
recognized, on estimated basis using historical experience and the specific terms of the arrangement, as 
a deduction from revenue at the time that the related sales are recognized or when such incentives are 
offered to the customer or consumer. Sales return provisions are recognized as deduction from revenue 
based on terms of the arrangements with the customer and are included in trade and other payables. No 
asset is recognized for returns as they are not anticipated to be resold. A receivable is recognised when 
the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only 
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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 The Company provides retrospective discounts to its customers on all products purchased by the 
customer once the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the 
contract. A contract liability is recognised for expected discount payable to customers in relation to sales 
made until the end of the reporting period. Further the Company receives short term advances from its 
customers. Prior to adoption of IFRS 15, a provision for sales discounts and advance consideration 
received from customers was included in ‘Trade and other payables’ which now is reclassified in 'Contract 
liabilities' presented separately on statement of financial position. In addition, reclassification has been 
made from 'Trade and other payables' to 'Contract liabilities' for outstanding balance of advance from 
customers and sales discounts payable for prior year to provide comparison. Advances from customers 
amounting to Rs. 65.254 million represents advance consideration received from customers at the 
beginning of the period have been recognised as revenue for six months period ended 31 December 
2018.

 The above is generally consistent with the timing of revenue the Company recognised in accordance with 
the previous standard, IAS 18 and related interpretations. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have 
an impact on the timing of revenue recognition of the Company. However, the amount of revenue to be 
recognized was affected as it change the way Company accounts for consideration payable to 
customers, cost of fulfilling the service (performance obligation) to customer and certain payments to 
customers or consumers, all of which were previously shown as distribution expenses, to be shown as 
deductions from revenue or included in cost of sales.

 The impact of adoption of IFRS 15 on the condensed interim unconsolidated statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income for the six months period ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

       

As reported Adjustments

Amounts 
without 

adoption of 
IFRS 15

Revenue            7,914,001         376,012      8,290,013 
Cost of Sales           (5,298,488)             7,142     (5,291,346)
Distribution Costs           (1,279,927)        (383,160)     (1,663,087)

Had the Company applied IFRS 15 retrospectively, the impact on the condensed interim
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the six months period
ended 31 December 2017 would have been as follows:*

As reported 
under IAS 18 
and related 

interpretations

Adjustments

Amounts 
with 

adoption of 
IFRS 15

Revenue            7,630,258        (236,340)      7,393,918 
Cost of Sales           (5,017,397)          (28,450)     (5,045,847)
Distribution Costs           (1,605,270)         264,790     (1,340,480)

*The above information has been disclosed for the purpose of comparison.

------------------ (Rupees in '000) -----------------

------------------ (Rupees in '000) -----------------
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IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that 
relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The IFRS 
9 has been early adopted without restating comparative information as allowed under the standard.

 The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to previous 
accounting policies are set out below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

 IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of 
financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to 
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company 
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

 - those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), 
or through profit or loss); and

 - those to be measured at amortised cost.
  
 The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 

contractual terms of the cash flows.

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

 - it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 - its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on principal amount outstanding.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For 
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company 
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at 
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

 The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

 At present the Company has financial asset measured at amortized cost. Trade and other receivables 
and cash and cash equivalents that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now 
classified at amortised cost. The classification and measurement under IFRS 9 does not have any 
impact on Company’s accounting policy.

 Trade receivable is initially measured at transaction price and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, net of impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange 
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
recognised in profit or loss.

 Impairment

 IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new 
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt 
investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original 
effective interest rate.

 The financial assets at amortised cost consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and 
other receivables.

 For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected 
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the 
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics 
and the days past due. Majority of debtors are regular customers of the Company and management 
uses actual historical credit loss experience, based on payment profile of credit sales over past year, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment to determine 
lifetime expected loss allowance. There is no significant impact from the new expected credit loss (ECL) 
impairment model under IFRS 9 on allowances and provisions for trade receivables. Trade receivables 
are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

 Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are presented separately in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. As a result, the Company reclassified impairment losses 
amounting to Rs 50 million recognised under IAS 39 for comparative period, from ‘distribution costs’ to 
‘impairment loss on trade and other receivables in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income.

4. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
4.1 The preparation of condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements require the management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

4.2 The significant judgements made by management in applying the Company’s accounting policies and 
the key sources of estimating the uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the audited annual 
unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for new 
significant judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty related to application of IFRS 15 and 
IFRS 9 as described in note 3.4 of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

4.3 The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Company are consistent with 
those disclosed in the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 
30 June 2018.
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IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that 
relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The IFRS 
9 has been early adopted without restating comparative information as allowed under the standard.

 The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to previous 
accounting policies are set out below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

 IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of 
financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to 
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company 
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

 - those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), 
or through profit or loss); and

 - those to be measured at amortised cost.
  
 The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 

contractual terms of the cash flows.

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

 - it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 - its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on principal amount outstanding.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For 
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company 
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at 
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

 The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

 At present the Company has financial asset measured at amortized cost. Trade and other receivables 
and cash and cash equivalents that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now 
classified at amortised cost. The classification and measurement under IFRS 9 does not have any 
impact on Company’s accounting policy.

 Trade receivable is initially measured at transaction price and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, net of impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange 
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
recognised in profit or loss.

 Impairment

 IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new 
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt 
investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original 
effective interest rate.

 The financial assets at amortised cost consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and 
other receivables.

 For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected 
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the 
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics 
and the days past due. Majority of debtors are regular customers of the Company and management 
uses actual historical credit loss experience, based on payment profile of credit sales over past year, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment to determine 
lifetime expected loss allowance. There is no significant impact from the new expected credit loss (ECL) 
impairment model under IFRS 9 on allowances and provisions for trade receivables. Trade receivables 
are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

 Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are presented separately in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. As a result, the Company reclassified impairment losses 
amounting to Rs 50 million recognised under IAS 39 for comparative period, from ‘distribution costs’ to 
‘impairment loss on trade and other receivables in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income.

4. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
4.1 The preparation of condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements require the management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

4.2 The significant judgements made by management in applying the Company’s accounting policies and 
the key sources of estimating the uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the audited annual 
unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for new 
significant judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty related to application of IFRS 15 and 
IFRS 9 as described in note 3.4 of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

4.3 The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Company are consistent with 
those disclosed in the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 
30 June 2018.

7.1 This includes running finance balance maintained with Islamic banks having balance of Rs. 337.440 
million (30 June 2018: Rs. 363.049 million).

7.2 The facilities available from various banks amounts to Rs. 3.19 billion (30 June 2018: Rs. 3.19 billion). 
The arrangements are secured by way of pari-passu charge against hypothecation of Company's stock 
in trade, movables and trade debts. The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to 
review at various dates during 2018.

7.3 The rates of mark up range from one month KIBOR plus 0.04% to three months KIBOR plus 0.50% per 
annum (30 June 2018: one month KIBOR plus 0.04% to three months KIBOR plus 0.5% per annum).

8. LONG-TERM FINANCE CLASSIFIED AS CURRENT - SECURED

 The loan facility requires the Company to maintain a current ratio of 1.1:1 at all times till the settlement 
of loan. At period end, breach of such covenant took place primarily due to spike in the short term 
borrowing availed by the Company. According to the loan agreement in the event of breach of conditions 
the lender is entitled to demand immediate repayment of the outstanding loan amount. However, the 
lender has not requested early repayment of the loan as yet. In compliance with requirement of IAS 1 
"Presentation of Financial Statements" the related facility has been classified as current liability. 
Management is in discussion with the lender to seek waiver of the covenant including relaxing the 
related requirement and is confident of a favourable response.

9. COMMITMENTS

9.1 Aggregate commitments for capital expenditure as at 31 December 2018 amount to Rs. 83.433 million 
(30 June 2018: Rs. 94.18 million).

9.2 The facilities for opening letters of credit amount to Rs. 1.6 billion (30 June 2018: Rs. 1.6 billion) and for 

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 31 December 30 June 
2018 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Rupees in '000)

Operating fixed assets 3,915,894          3,355,740         
Capital work in progress 558,710             794,866            

4,474,604          4,150,606         

5.1 Following are the additions and disposals of property, plant and equipment during the period:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)
Additions / transfers from CWIP
Building on leasehold land 263,853             792,649            
Plant and machinery 463,529             157,188            
Computer equipment 26,754               15,706              
Vehicles 11,302               4,390                
Furniture and fittings 1,802                 65,737              
Others 12,656               67,237              

779,896             1,102,907         

Additions to operating fixed assets include transfers of 
Rs 659.588 million (31 December 2017: Rs. 589.01 million) 
from capital work in progress

Net (transfer from) / addition to CWIP (236,156)            (238,905)           

Disposals - Net book value
Vehicles [cost Rs. 64.34 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 4.35 million)] 34,133               2,643                

Computer equipments [cost Rs. 41.22 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 0.12 million)] 295                    -                    

Furniture and fittings [cost Rs. 0.028 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 2.81 million)] -                     -                    

Others [cost Rs. 3.42 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 0.12 million)] 292                    30                     

5.2 All the non-current assets of the Company are located in Pakistan.

Six months ended

6. STOCK IN TRADE

Stock in trade includes finished goods costing Rs. 47.78 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 43.69 million) valued at
net realisable value of Rs. 36.10 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 32.10 million).

7. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 31 December 30 June 
2018 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Rupees in '000)

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 768,808             935,671            
Running finance under Musharakah 337,440             363,049            
Export re-finance 400,000             400,000            
Money market loan 200,000             450,000            

1,706,248          2,148,720         

letters of guarantee amount to Rs. 141 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 141 million) as at 31 December 2018 
of which the amount remaining unutilised at period end were Rs. 1.34 billion (30 June 2018: Rs. 1.34 
billion) and Rs. 101.26 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 104.26 million) respectively.

9.3 Aggregate commitments in respect of ujrah payments for ijarah financing of motor vehicles bearing mark 
up ranging from six months KIBOR + 0.6% to six months KIBOR + 0.9% (30 June 2018: six months 
KIBOR + 0.6% to six months KIBOR + 0.9%) per annum for rentals payable monthly as at 31 December 
2018 amount to:
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7.1 This includes running finance balance maintained with Islamic banks having balance of Rs. 337.440 
million (30 June 2018: Rs. 363.049 million).

7.2 The facilities available from various banks amounts to Rs. 3.19 billion (30 June 2018: Rs. 3.19 billion). 
The arrangements are secured by way of pari-passu charge against hypothecation of Company's stock 
in trade, movables and trade debts. The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to 
review at various dates during 2018.

7.3 The rates of mark up range from one month KIBOR plus 0.04% to three months KIBOR plus 0.50% per 
annum (30 June 2018: one month KIBOR plus 0.04% to three months KIBOR plus 0.5% per annum).

8. LONG-TERM FINANCE CLASSIFIED AS CURRENT - SECURED

 The loan facility requires the Company to maintain a current ratio of 1.1:1 at all times till the settlement 
of loan. At period end, breach of such covenant took place primarily due to spike in the short term 
borrowing availed by the Company. According to the loan agreement in the event of breach of conditions 
the lender is entitled to demand immediate repayment of the outstanding loan amount. However, the 
lender has not requested early repayment of the loan as yet. In compliance with requirement of IAS 1 
"Presentation of Financial Statements" the related facility has been classified as current liability. 
Management is in discussion with the lender to seek waiver of the covenant including relaxing the 
related requirement and is confident of a favourable response.

9. COMMITMENTS

9.1 Aggregate commitments for capital expenditure as at 31 December 2018 amount to Rs. 83.433 million 
(30 June 2018: Rs. 94.18 million).

9.2 The facilities for opening letters of credit amount to Rs. 1.6 billion (30 June 2018: Rs. 1.6 billion) and for 

letters of guarantee amount to Rs. 141 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 141 million) as at 31 December 2018 
of which the amount remaining unutilised at period end were Rs. 1.34 billion (30 June 2018: Rs. 1.34 
billion) and Rs. 101.26 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 104.26 million) respectively.

9.3 Aggregate commitments in respect of ujrah payments for ijarah financing of motor vehicles bearing mark 
up ranging from six months KIBOR + 0.6% to six months KIBOR + 0.9% (30 June 2018: six months 
KIBOR + 0.6% to six months KIBOR + 0.9%) per annum for rentals payable monthly as at 31 December 
2018 amount to:

31 December 30 June 
2018 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Rupees in '000)

Not later than one year 77,043               73,447              
Later than one year but not later than five years 128,672             114,997            

205,715             188,444            

10. SALES
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)

Local sales 11,389,121       10,195,319       
Export sales 580,019            587,291            

11,969,140       10,782,610       
Less: Sales tax (1,579,653)       (1,384,641)       

10,389,487       9,397,969         
Less:
Discount, rebates and allowances (2,326,128)       (1,695,331)       
Sales return (149,358)          (72,380)            

(2,475,486)       (1,767,711)       

7,914,001         7,630,258         

10.1 Exports sales represents sales made to NF DMCC - a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
other customers, in United Arab Emirates and Afghanistan.

10.2 Revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market (above) and by product division. During the
six months period ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Foods Division was Rs. 4,118 million
(31 December 2017: Rs. 4,002.09 million), Kitchen Division was Rs. 7,851.14 (31 December 2017:
Rs. 6,780.52 million).

11. TAXATION

- Current 136,774            108,065            
- Deferred 52,682              70,967              

189,456            179,032            

Under section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (as amended by the Finance Act, 2017), a tax
shall be imposed at the rate of 5% of the accounting profit before tax on every public company, other
than schedule bank or modaraba, that drives profit for a tax year but does not distribute at least 20% of
its profits within six months of the end of the tax year through cash. The Board of Directors of the
Company will consider this matter before the authorization of annual financial statements for the year
ending 30 June 2019. Hence, no tax consequences applicable on undistributed profit are recognised in
these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders 668,278            288,602            

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period* 124,328            124,328            

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 5.38 2.32

*weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the comparative period has been
adjusted for issuance of bonus shares

Six months ended

(Unaudited)

(Number of shares)

(Rupees)

(In '000')
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For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated 
Financial Information (unaudited)
For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

13. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)

Profit before taxation 857,734 467,634

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items
Depreciation 193,516 149,618
Amortization 21,963 19,691
Retirement benefit expense 4,682 2,318
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (20,175) (4,148)
Impairment loss on trade debts 5,400 50,000
(Reversal against) / provision for slow moving 

and obsolete stock (18,828) (12,503)
Finance cost 57,102 49,164

Working capital changes 13.1 200,611 354,866
1,302,005 1,076,640

13.1 Working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (13,507)            (26,281)            
Stock in trade (215,952)          78,262              
Trade debts (25,410)            63,431              
Advances (21,033)            33,281              
Trade deposits and prepayments (38,107)            (28,110)            
Other receivables (4,866)              68,685              
Sales tax refundable 121,424            40,633              

(197,451) 229,901            
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 199,598 (10,412)            
Contract Liability 155,245 -                    
Sales tax payable 43,219 135,377            

398,062 124,965

200,611 354,866

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 386,753 125,173
Running finance under mark-up arrangement (1,106,248) (861,630)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period (719,495) (736,457)

Six months ended

(Unaudited)

15. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transaction with related parties, other than disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

15.1 At reporting date the trade debts include Rs. 465.62 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 541.96 million)
 receivable from National Foods DMCC (subsidiary company).

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

Parent Company
Rent payment -                    2,262                
Rental income 4,744                2,400                

Subsidiary Company
Sale of goods - net 580,019            585,562            

Associated Companies / Undertakings
Sale of goods 344,845            773,486            
Commission expense 5,835                31,091              

Staff retirement funds
Expense charged for defined contribution plan 26,057              21,840              
Payment to defined contribution plan 36,151              49,378              

Key Management Personnel:
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 284,861            199,956            
Contribution to Provident Fund 11,545              8,914                
Post retirement benefits of Executive Directors 4,682                2,319                

16. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for better presentation, where ever
considered necessary, the effect of which is not material.

17. GENERAL

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements has been authorised for issue on 
19th February 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Six months ended

(Rupees in '000)
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____________________ ____________________ __________________
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director 

Condensed Interim Consolidated 
Profit and Loss Account (Unaudited)
For the quarter and six months period ended 31 December 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
31 December 30 June

Note 2018 2018
ASSETS (Rupees in '000)
Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 4,883,398        4,531,638           
Intangibles and goodwill 691,936            659,555               
Long term deposits 40,708              41,409                 

5,616,042        5,232,602           
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 55,387              41,880                 
Stock-in-trade 6 4,039,720        3,682,064           
Trade debts 886,554            1,164,931           
Advances 132,187            176,735               
Trade deposits and prepayments 193,422            112,347               
Other receivables 231,357            23,315                 
Sales tax refundable -                      121,424               
Cash and bank balances 460,173            376,794               

5,998,800        5,699,490           
TOTAL ASSETS 11,614,842     10,932,092         

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' equity

Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital

1,000,000,000 (30 June 2017: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each 5,000,000        1,000,000           

Share Capital
    Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 621,644            518,034               
Revenue Reserves
   Unappropriated profit 3,515,157        3,233,729           
  Foreign exchange translation reserve 102,687            56,176                 
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 4,239,488        3,807,939           
Non-controlling interest 231,301            196,293               
Total equity 4,470,789        4,004,232           

Non - current liabilities

Long term finance 534,980            199,259               
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 46,778              34,470                 
Long term deposits 3,531                 3,235                   
Deferred liabilities 50,190              45,065                 
Deferred rent 31,949              25,003                 
Deferred taxation - net 169,693            111,913               

837,121            418,945               

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 3,106,130        3,232,678           
Unclaimed Dividend 75,980              18,323                 
Contract Liability 210,777            -                        
Mark-up accrued 11,183              17,605                 
Short-term borrowings - secured 7 1,817,198        2,204,869           
Long-term finance classified as current - secured 493,152            193,152               
Current maturity of long term finance  - secured 196,312            333,750               
Current maturity of deferred consideration -                      188,128               
Current maturity of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 7,210                 6,604                   
Taxation - net 345,773            313,806               
Sales tax payable 43,219              -                        

6,306,934        6,508,915           
7,144,055        6,927,860           

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,614,842     10,932,092         

Commitments 9

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this consolidated interim financial information.

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

Sales 10

11

5,510,337      4,538,121   11,511,645   10,111,962  
Cost of sales (3,902,661)    (3,195,543) (8,072,645)    (6,965,121)   
Gross profit 1,607,676      1,342,578   3,439,000      3,146,841    

Distribution costs (873,722)       (970,364)     (1,771,083)    (1,983,998)   
Impairment loss on trade debts (5,400)             -                (5,400)             -                 
Administrative expenses (328,355)       (284,782)     (595,670)       (482,822)      
Other expenses (12,944)          (20,029)       (54,917)          (63,264)        
Other income 129,927         10,974         143,600         17,517          
Operating profit 517,182         78,377         1,155,530      634,274        
Finance costs (56,054)          (45,876)       (112,681)       (85,717)        
Profit before taxation 461,128         32,501         1,042,849      548,557        
Taxation - net (100,336)       (42,013)       (234,277)       (197,406)      
Profit after tax 360,792         (9,512)          808,572         351,151        

Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit 

and loss account:
Foreign operations - foreign currency transalation differences 50,248            8,461           46,511            12,640          

Total comprehensive income for the year 411,040         (1,051)          855,083         363,791        

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 343,688         (9,447)          773,564         328,871        
Non-controlling interest 22,200            (65)                35,008            22,280          

360,792         (9,512)          808,572         351,151        
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 400,426         (2,956)          830,640         338,336        
Non-controlling interest 15,710            1,905           24,442            25,455          

411,040         (1,051)          855,083         363,791        

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 12                   2.76              (0.08)                   6.22                 2.65 

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this consolidated interim financial information.

(Rupees in '000)

 (Rupees) 

Quarter ended Half year ended

 (Rupees) 

(Rupees in '000)
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)
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Consolidated Condensed Interim 
Cash Flow Statement (Unaudited)
For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

Share 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Sub-total

Balance as at 1 July 2017 518,034         2,686,892     7,283              3,212,209     179,196         3,391,405     

Total comprehensive income for the six months
ended 31 December 2017

Profit for the six months ended 31 December 2017 -                   328,871         -                   328,871         22,280           351,151         
Other comprehensive income for the six months

ended 31 December 2017 -                   -                   9,465              9,465              3,175              12,640           
-                   328,871         9,465              338,336         25,455           363,791         

Transaction with owners in their capacity 
as owners directly recorded in equity

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2017 @ Rs. 4.25 per share -                   (440,329)       -                   (440,329)       -                   (440,329)       

 
Balance as at 31 December 2017 518,034         2,575,434     16,748           3,110,216     204,651         3,314,867     

Balance as at 1 July 2018 518,034       3,233,729    56,176          3,807,939    196,293       4,004,232    

Total comprehensive income for the six months
ended 31 December 2018

Profit for the six months ended 31 December 2018 -                  773,564       -                  773,564       35,008          808,572       
Other comprehensive income for the six months

ended 31 December 2018 -                  -                  46,511          46,511          -                  46,511          
-                  773,564       46,511          820,075       35,008          855,083       

Transaction with owners in their capacity 
as owners directly recorded in equity

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June (388,526)     -                  (388,526)     -                  (388,526)     
2018 @ Rs. 3.75 per share

1 Ordinary shares for each 5 shares 
   held alloted as bonus shares 103,610       (103,610)     -                  -                  -                  -                  

Balance as at 31 December 2018 621,644       3,515,157    102,687       4,239,487    231,301       4,470,789    

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this consolidated interim financial information.

Attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company Non 
controlling 

interest

Total equity

 ---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------ 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
31 December 31 December

Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 13 1,381,062      1,060,376        
Finance cost paid (116,264)        (70,999)            
Income tax paid (146,936)        (245,109)          
Deferred rent 4,470               8,164                
Retirement benefits obligations paid -                    -                     
Long term deposits 854                   (492)                  
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,123,186      751,940           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (584,769)        (1,055,107)      
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 54,446            6,821                
Purchase of intangible assets (7,477)             (45,763)            
Deferred consideration paid (196,894)        (142,709)          
Net cash used in investing activities (734,694)        (1,236,758)      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from short term borrowings -                    788,000           
Proceeds from long term finance 503,622          252,154           
Repayment of long term finance (90,282)          -                     
Repayment of short term borrowings (250,000)        (100,000)          
Dividend paid (330,866)        (431,577)          
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (167,526)        508,577           

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 220,966          23,759              

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (978,074)        (623,506)          
Currency translation difference on cash and cash equivalents 83                     3,477                
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14 (757,025)        (596,270)          

The annexed notes 1 to 17 form an integral part of this consolidated interim financial information.

(Rupees in '000)

Half Yearly Report December 2018



34

For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated 
Financial Information (unaudited)

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS 

1.1 The group consists of:

i) Holding Company - National Foods Limited ii) Subsidiary Company - National Foods DMCC

National Foods Limited

 National Foods Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on February 19, 1970 as a private limited company 
under the Companies Act, 1913 and subsequently converted into a public limited company under the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 by special resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting held on 
March 30, 1988. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of convenience based 
food products. It is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated 
at 12 / CL - 6, Claremont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi.

 The parent entity of the Company is Associated Textile Consultants (Private) Limited based on control 
model as provided under International Financial Reporting Standards 10 - 'Consolidated Financial 
Statements'.

National Foods DMCC

 National Foods DMCC was registered on 7 November 2012 in Dubai Multi Commodities Centre 
(“DMCC”) pursuant to Dubai (DMCC) Law No. 4 of 2001 and operates in the United Arab Emirates 
(“UAE”) under a trade license issued by DMCC. The registered address of the Company is Unit No. 
R30-26, Floor No. 30, R Serviced Offices JLT, Reef Tower, Plot No. 01 Jumeirah Lakes Towers Dubai, 
United Arab Emirates.

 The primary objective of NF DMCC is to boost export sales of its parent company through trading in food 
stuff and other services.

 NF DMCC also has following two wholly owned subsidiaries:

a) National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited

 National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited was incorporated in United Kingdom on 29 May 2013 as a private 
company under the Companies Act, 2006. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food 
products. The registered office of the company is situated at 27 Second Floor, Gloucester Place, London, 
United Kingdom. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

b) National Epicure Inc.

 National Epicure Inc. (NEI) was incorporated in Canada on 16 October 2013 under the Canada Business 
Corporations Act. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food products. The registered 
office of the company is situated at 193 Maxome Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, Canada. The company is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

NEI also has the following subsidiary:

a) A-1 Bags & Supplies Inc.
 
 A-1 Bags & Supplies Inc., is incorporated in Canada on 14 March 2001, under the Canada Business 

Corporations Act. The company is principally engaged in distribution and wholesale of food products, 

35

Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated 
Financial Information (unaudited)
For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

disposables, janitorial and sanitation products. The registered office of the company is situated at 6400 
Kennedy Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance
 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, 'Interim Financial Reporting', issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have 
been followed.

2.2 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements do not include all the informations and 
disclosures required for annual consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with 
the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 
June 2018.

2.3 Basis of measurement
 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention, except for the Company's liability under its defined benefit plan which is reported on the basis 
of present value of defined benefit obligations as determined by an independent actuary.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
 The condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the Group's 

functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded off to the 
nearest thousand Rupee except where stated otherwise.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these condensed 
interim consolidated financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of these 
condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for the 
adoption of new standards effective as of 1 July 2018 as referred to in note 3.4 to these condensed interim 
unconsolidated financial statements.

3.2 NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY
 The Company has initially adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 9 

‘Financial Instruments’ from 1 July 2018. The impact of the adoption of these standards and the new 
accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.4 below.

 A number of other pronouncements are effective from 1 July 2018 as detailed in Company's annual 
audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018, but they do not 
have a material effect on these financial statements and therefore have not been detailed.

3.3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 There are certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to the approved accounting standards 
that will be mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. 
However, currently management considers that these pronouncements will not have any significant 
impact on the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these 
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

3.4 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The below explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on the Company’s condensed interim consolidated financial statements 
and also discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 July 2018, where they are 
different to those applied in prior periods.

 IFRS 15 ‘REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS’

 IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction Contracts' and related interpretations. The 
Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS 15 as allowed under the 
Standard. This method requires the recognition of the cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of 
initially applying IFRS 15 to retained earnings. Accordingly, the information presented for comparative 
period in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have not been restated i.e. it is 
presented, as previously reported under IAS 18 and related interpretations.

 Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a contractual promise to a customer (performance 
obligation) has been fulfilled by transferring control over the promised goods and services to the 
customer. It also specifies the accounting for the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. Management 
has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the 
product has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer. Invoices are generated 
and revenue is recognised on delivery of goods. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped 
to / or and delivered to the customer’s destination / specific location, the risks of loss have been 
transferred to the customer and the customer has accepted the product.

 The consideration which the Company receives in exchange for its goods or services may be fixed or 
variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will 
not occur. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, net 
of returns, amounts collected on behalf of third parties (sales taxes etc), pricing allowances, other trade 
discounts, volume rebates and couponing, price promotions to consumers / customers and any other 
consideration payable to customers. The level of discounts, allowances and promotional rebates are 
recognized, on estimated basis using historical experience and the specific terms of the arrangement, as 
a deduction from revenue at the time that the related sales are recognized or when such incentives are 
offered to the customer or consumer. Sales return provisions are recognized as deduction from revenue 
based on terms of the arrangements with the customer and are included in trade and other payables. No 
asset is recognized for returns as they are not anticipated to be resold. A receivable is recognised when 
the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the 
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

 The Company provides retrospective discounts to its customers on all products purchased by the 
customer once the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the 
contract. A contract liability is recognised for expected discount payable to customers in relation to sales 
made until the end of the reporting period. Further the Company receives short term advances from its 
customers. Prior to adoption of IFRS 15, a provision for sales discounts and advance consideration 
received from customers was included in ‘Trade and other payables’ which now is reclassified in 'Contract 
liabilities' presented separately on statement of financial position. In addition, reclassification has been 
made from 'Trade and other payables' to 'Contract liabilities' for outstanding balance of advance from 
customers and sales discounts payable for prior year to provide comparison. Advances from customers 
amounting to Rs. 65.254 million represents advance consideration received from customers at the 
beginning of the period have been recognised as revenue for six months period ended 31 December 
2018.

 The above is generally consistent with the timing of revenue the Company recognised in accordance with 
the previous standard, IAS 18 and related interpretations. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have 
an impact on the timing of revenue recognition of the Company. However, the amount of revenue to be 
recognized was affected as it changes the way Company accounts for consideration payable to 
customers, cost of fulfilling the service (performance obligation) to customer and certain payments to 
customers or consumers, all of which were previously shown as distribution expenses, to be shown as 
deductions from revenue or included in cost of sales.

 The impact of adoption of IFRS 15 on the condensed interim consolidated statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income for the six months period ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:
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1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS 

1.1 The group consists of:

i) Holding Company - National Foods Limited ii) Subsidiary Company - National Foods DMCC

National Foods Limited

 National Foods Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on February 19, 1970 as a private limited company 
under the Companies Act, 1913 and subsequently converted into a public limited company under the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 by special resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting held on 
March 30, 1988. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of convenience based 
food products. It is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated 
at 12 / CL - 6, Claremont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi.

 The parent entity of the Company is Associated Textile Consultants (Private) Limited based on control 
model as provided under International Financial Reporting Standards 10 - 'Consolidated Financial 
Statements'.

National Foods DMCC

 National Foods DMCC was registered on 7 November 2012 in Dubai Multi Commodities Centre 
(“DMCC”) pursuant to Dubai (DMCC) Law No. 4 of 2001 and operates in the United Arab Emirates 
(“UAE”) under a trade license issued by DMCC. The registered address of the Company is Unit No. 
R30-26, Floor No. 30, R Serviced Offices JLT, Reef Tower, Plot No. 01 Jumeirah Lakes Towers Dubai, 
United Arab Emirates.

 The primary objective of NF DMCC is to boost export sales of its parent company through trading in food 
stuff and other services.

 NF DMCC also has following two wholly owned subsidiaries:

a) National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited

 National Foods Pakistan (UK) Limited was incorporated in United Kingdom on 29 May 2013 as a private 
company under the Companies Act, 2006. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food 
products. The registered office of the company is situated at 27 Second Floor, Gloucester Place, London, 
United Kingdom. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

b) National Epicure Inc.

 National Epicure Inc. (NEI) was incorporated in Canada on 16 October 2013 under the Canada Business 
Corporations Act. The company is principally engaged in the trading of food products. The registered 
office of the company is situated at 193 Maxome Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, Canada. The company is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of National Foods DMCC.

NEI also has the following subsidiary:

a) A-1 Bags & Supplies Inc.
 
 A-1 Bags & Supplies Inc., is incorporated in Canada on 14 March 2001, under the Canada Business 

Corporations Act. The company is principally engaged in distribution and wholesale of food products, 

disposables, janitorial and sanitation products. The registered office of the company is situated at 6400 
Kennedy Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance
 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, 'Interim Financial Reporting', issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have 
been followed.

2.2 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements do not include all the informations and 
disclosures required for annual consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with 
the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 
June 2018.

2.3 Basis of measurement
 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention, except for the Company's liability under its defined benefit plan which is reported on the basis 
of present value of defined benefit obligations as determined by an independent actuary.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
 The condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the Group's 

functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded off to the 
nearest thousand Rupee except where stated otherwise.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these condensed 
interim consolidated financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of these 
condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for the 
adoption of new standards effective as of 1 July 2018 as referred to in note 3.4 to these condensed interim 
unconsolidated financial statements.

3.2 NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY
 The Company has initially adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 9 

‘Financial Instruments’ from 1 July 2018. The impact of the adoption of these standards and the new 
accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.4 below.

 A number of other pronouncements are effective from 1 July 2018 as detailed in Company's annual 
audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018, but they do not 
have a material effect on these financial statements and therefore have not been detailed.
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3.3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 There are certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to the approved accounting standards 
that will be mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. 
However, currently management considers that these pronouncements will not have any significant 
impact on the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these 
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

3.4 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The below explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and 
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' on the Company’s condensed interim consolidated financial statements 
and also discloses the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 July 2018, where they are 
different to those applied in prior periods.

 IFRS 15 ‘REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS’

 IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction Contracts' and related interpretations. The 
Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS 15 as allowed under the 
Standard. This method requires the recognition of the cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of 
initially applying IFRS 15 to retained earnings. Accordingly, the information presented for comparative 
period in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have not been restated i.e. it is 
presented, as previously reported under IAS 18 and related interpretations.

 Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a contractual promise to a customer (performance 
obligation) has been fulfilled by transferring control over the promised goods and services to the 
customer. It also specifies the accounting for the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. Management 
has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the 
product has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer. Invoices are generated 
and revenue is recognised on delivery of goods. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped 
to / or and delivered to the customer’s destination / specific location, the risks of loss have been 
transferred to the customer and the customer has accepted the product.

 The consideration which the Company receives in exchange for its goods or services may be fixed or 
variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will 
not occur. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, net 
of returns, amounts collected on behalf of third parties (sales taxes etc), pricing allowances, other trade 
discounts, volume rebates and couponing, price promotions to consumers / customers and any other 
consideration payable to customers. The level of discounts, allowances and promotional rebates are 
recognized, on estimated basis using historical experience and the specific terms of the arrangement, as 
a deduction from revenue at the time that the related sales are recognized or when such incentives are 
offered to the customer or consumer. Sales return provisions are recognized as deduction from revenue 
based on terms of the arrangements with the customer and are included in trade and other payables. No 
asset is recognized for returns as they are not anticipated to be resold. A receivable is recognised when 
the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the 
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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 The Company provides retrospective discounts to its customers on all products purchased by the 
customer once the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the 
contract. A contract liability is recognised for expected discount payable to customers in relation to sales 
made until the end of the reporting period. Further the Company receives short term advances from its 
customers. Prior to adoption of IFRS 15, a provision for sales discounts and advance consideration 
received from customers was included in ‘Trade and other payables’ which now is reclassified in 'Contract 
liabilities' presented separately on statement of financial position. In addition, reclassification has been 
made from 'Trade and other payables' to 'Contract liabilities' for outstanding balance of advance from 
customers and sales discounts payable for prior year to provide comparison. Advances from customers 
amounting to Rs. 65.254 million represents advance consideration received from customers at the 
beginning of the period have been recognised as revenue for six months period ended 31 December 
2018.

 The above is generally consistent with the timing of revenue the Company recognised in accordance with 
the previous standard, IAS 18 and related interpretations. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have 
an impact on the timing of revenue recognition of the Company. However, the amount of revenue to be 
recognized was affected as it changes the way Company accounts for consideration payable to 
customers, cost of fulfilling the service (performance obligation) to customer and certain payments to 
customers or consumers, all of which were previously shown as distribution expenses, to be shown as 
deductions from revenue or included in cost of sales.

 The impact of adoption of IFRS 15 on the condensed interim consolidated statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income for the six months period ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

As reported Adjustments Amounts without 
adoption of IFRS 

15

Revenue            11,511,645                           398,147                 11,909,792 
Cost of Sales (8,072,645) 7,142 (8,065,503)
Distribution Costs (1,771,083) (405,289) (2,176,372)

Had the Company applied IFRS 15 retrospectively, the impact on the condensed interim consolidated statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the six months period ended 31 December 2017 would 
have been as follows:*

As reported 
under IAS 18 
and related 

interpretations

Adjustments Amounts with 
adoption of IFRS 

15

Revenue            10,111,962 (280,412) 9,831,550
Cost of Sales (6,965,121) (28,450) (6,993,571)
Distribution Costs (1,983,998) 308,862 (1,675,136)

*The above information has been disclosed for the purpose of comparison.
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 Further contract liability as at 30 June 2018 amounting to Rs. 70 million would have been separately 
reported on statement of financial position which is included in trade and other payables. Apart from 
these changes, the application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the financial position and 
/ or financial performance of the Company for the reasons described above. Accordingly there was no 
adjustment to retained earnings on application of IFRS 15 at 1 July 2018.

IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 
 IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that 

relates to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 
largely retainsthe existing requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial 
liabilities. The IFRS 9 has been adopted without restating comparative information as allowed under the 
standard.

 The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to previous 
accounting policies are set out below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
 
 IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of 

financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to 
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.

 Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following 
measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), or 
through profit or loss); and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

 The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows.

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

- it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on principal amount outstanding.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For 
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company 
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has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at 
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

 The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

 At present the Company has financial asset measured at amortized cost. Trade and other receivables 
and cash and cash equivalents that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now 
classified at amortised cost. The classification and measurement under IFRS 9 does not have any 
impact on Company’s accounting policy.

 Trade receivable is initially measured at transaction price and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, net of impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange 
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

 IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new 
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt 
investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. The financial assets at amortised cost consist of trade receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents, and other receivables. For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified 
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade 
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on 
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. Majority of debtors are regular customers of the 
Company and management uses actual historical credit loss experience, based on payment profile of 
credit sales over past year, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment to determine lifetime expected loss allowance. There is no significant impact from the new 
expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model under IFRS 9 on allowances and provisions for trade 
receivables. Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

 Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are presented separately in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. As a result, the Company reclassified impairment losses 
amounting to Rs 50 million recognised under IAS 39, from ‘other expenses’ to ‘impairment loss on trade 
and other receivables in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.5 Basis of consolidation
 
 The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies are 

prepared up to the same reporting date and are combined on a line-by-line basis.

Non-controlling interests

 Non-controlling interest (NCI) is measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets at the date of acquisition, as adjusted for proportionate share in profit and loss of the acquiree 
after the acquisition date.

4. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The preparation of this consolidated condensed interim financial information requires the management 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

 The significant judgements made by management in applying the Company’s accounting policies and 
the key sources of estimating the uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the audited annual 
unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for new 
significant judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty related to application of IFRS 15 and 
IFRS 9 as described in note 3.4 of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

 The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Group are consistent with those 
disclosed in the audited annual financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018.
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 Further contract liability as at 30 June 2018 amounting to Rs. 70 million would have been separately 
reported on statement of financial position which is included in trade and other payables. Apart from 
these changes, the application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the financial position and 
/ or financial performance of the Company for the reasons described above. Accordingly there was no 
adjustment to retained earnings on application of IFRS 15 at 1 July 2018.

IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 
 IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that 

relates to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 
largely retainsthe existing requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial 
liabilities. The IFRS 9 has been adopted without restating comparative information as allowed under the 
standard.

 The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to previous 
accounting policies are set out below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
 
 IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of 

financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to 
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.

 Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following 
measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), or 
through profit or loss); and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

 The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows.

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

- it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on principal amount outstanding.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For 
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company 
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has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at 
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

 The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

 At present the Company has financial asset measured at amortized cost. Trade and other receivables 
and cash and cash equivalents that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now 
classified at amortised cost. The classification and measurement under IFRS 9 does not have any 
impact on Company’s accounting policy.

 Trade receivable is initially measured at transaction price and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, net of impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange 
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

 IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new 
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt 
investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. The financial assets at amortised cost consist of trade receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents, and other receivables. For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified 
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade 
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on 
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. Majority of debtors are regular customers of the 
Company and management uses actual historical credit loss experience, based on payment profile of 
credit sales over past year, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment to determine lifetime expected loss allowance. There is no significant impact from the new 
expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model under IFRS 9 on allowances and provisions for trade 
receivables. Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

 Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are presented separately in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. As a result, the Company reclassified impairment losses 
amounting to Rs 50 million recognised under IAS 39, from ‘other expenses’ to ‘impairment loss on trade 
and other receivables in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.5 Basis of consolidation
 
 The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies are 

prepared up to the same reporting date and are combined on a line-by-line basis.

Non-controlling interests

 Non-controlling interest (NCI) is measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets at the date of acquisition, as adjusted for proportionate share in profit and loss of the acquiree 
after the acquisition date.

4. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The preparation of this consolidated condensed interim financial information requires the management 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

 The significant judgements made by management in applying the Company’s accounting policies and 
the key sources of estimating the uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the audited annual 
unconsolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018 except for new 
significant judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty related to application of IFRS 15 and 
IFRS 9 as described in note 3.4 of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

 The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Group are consistent with those 
disclosed in the audited annual financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018.

(Unaudited) (Audited)
31 December 30 June

2018 2018

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 4,324,688                   3,736,771                 
Capital Work in Progress 558,710                       794,866                     

4,883,398                   4,531,637                 

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------

5.1 Following are the additions and disposals of property, plant and equipment: 

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

Additions/ transfer from CWIP
Leasehold Land -                                  -                              
Building on Leasehold land 269,993                       800,611                     
Plant & machinery 463,529                       157,188                     
Computers 32,532                          15,706                       
Motor vehicles - Owned 12,279                          4,390                          
Furniture & fittings 22,431                          91,465                       
Others 13,725                          67,301                       

814,489                       1,136,661                 

Net (transfer from) / addition to CWIP (236,156)                     (238,905)                   

Disposals - Net book value
Vehicles [cost Rs. 64.34 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 4.35 million)] 34,133                          2,643                          

Computer equipments [cost Rs. 41.22 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 0.12 million)] 295                                -                              

Furniture and fittings [cost Rs. 0.028 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 2.81 million)] -                                  -                              

Others [cost Rs. 3.42 million 
(31 December 2017: Rs. 0.12 million)] 292                                30                                

6. STOCK IN TRADE

Stock in trade includes finished goods costing Rs. 47.78 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 43.69 million) valued at net 
realisable value of Rs. 36.10 million (30 June 2018: Rs. 32.10 million).

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------
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---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------

7. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Running finance under mark up arrangements 879,758                       991,820                     
Running finance under Musharika 337,440                       363,049                     
Export re-finance 400,000                       400,000                     
Money Market Loan 200,000                       450,000                     

1,817,198                   2,204,869                 

7.1.

7.2

7.3

7.4

8. Long-term finance classified as current - secured

The loan facility requires the Company to maintain a current ratio of 1.1:1 at all times till the settlement of loan. At
period end, breach of such covenant took place primarily due to spike in the short term borrowing availed by the
Company. According to the loan agreement in the event of breach of conditions the lender is entitled to demand
immediate repayment of the outstanding loan amount. However, the lender has not requested early repayment of
the loan as yet. In compliance with requirement of IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" the related facility
has been classified as current liability. Management is in discussion with the lender to seek waiver of the
covenant including relaxing the related requirement and is confident of a favourable response.

9. COMMITMENTS

9.1

9.2

9.3

(Unaudited) (Audited)
31 December 30 June 

2018 2018

Payable within one year 242,842                       239,246                     
Payable over one to five years 655,770                       642,095                     
Payable after five years 264,357                       264,357                     

1,162,969                   1,145,698                 

This includes running finance balancemaintained with Islamic banks having balanceof Rs.337.440 million (30 June
2018: Rs. 363.049 million).

The rates of mark up range from one month KIBORplus 0.04% to three months KIBORplus 0.50% per annum (30 June
2018: one month KIBOR plus 0.04% to three months KIBOR plus 0.5% per annum).

Aggregate commitments for capital expenditure as at 31 December 2018 amount to Rs.83.433 million (30 June 2018:
Rs. 94.18 million).

This includes facilities obtained by A-1 Bagsand SuppliesInc. from commercial bank amounting to CAD2.50 million.
This facility is securedby a generalsecurity agreement,an assignmentof insuranceand postponementof related party
loans, and is guaranteed by shareholders. It bears interest rates at the bank's prime lending rate plus 1.0% per annum.

The facilities available from various banks amounts to Rs. 3.19 billion (30 June 2018: Rs. 3.19 billion). The
arrangements are securedby way of pari-passu charge against hypothecation of Company'sstock in trade, movables
and trade debts. The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to review at various dates during
2018. 

The facilities for opening letters of credit amount to Rs.1.6 billion (30 June 2018: Rs.1.6 billion) and for letters of
guarantee amount to Rs.141 million (30 June 2018: Rs.141 million) as at 31 December 2018 of which the amount
remaining unutilised at period end were Rs.1.34 billion (30 June 2018: Rs.1.34 billion) and Rs.101.26 million (30 June
2018: Rs. 104.26 million) respectively. 

Aggregate commitments in respect of ujrah payments for ijarah financing of motor vehicles bearing mark up ranging
from six months KIBOR+ 0.6% to six months KIBOR+ 0.9% (30 June2018: six months KIBOR+ 0.6% to six months
KIBOR + 0.9%) per annum for rentals payable monthly as at 31 December 2018 amount to:

Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated 
Financial Information (unaudited)

42

For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated 
Financial Information (unaudited)

43

For the six months period ended 31 December 2018

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------

(Unaudited) (Audited)
31 December June 30,

2018 2018

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

10. SALES

Gross sales
Local sales 11,389,121                 10,195,319               
Export sales 4,404,197                   3,242,418                 

15,793,317                 13,437,737               

Less: Sales tax (1,753,972)                 (1,500,860)               
14,039,345                 11,936,877               

Less:
Discount rebates and allowances (2,378,117)                   (1,723,674)                 
Sales return (149,584)                       (101,241)                     

(2,527,701)                   (1,824,915)                 

11,511,645                 10,111,962               

10.1 Exports sales represents sales made to NF DMCC - a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and other 
customers in United Arab Emirates and Afghanistan.

10.2 Revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market.

10.3

11. TAXATION

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

- Current 181,595                       113,114                     
- Deferred 52,682                          84,292                       

234,277                       197,406                     

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 31 December 31 December
2018 2017

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders 773,564                       328,871                     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period* 124,328,227              124,328,227            

Earning per share - basic and diluted 6.22 2.65
*weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the comparative period has been adjusted for issuance

of bonus shares

Number of shares

Rupees

(Rupees in '000)

Half year ended

(Unaudited)
(Rupees in '000)

Managementreviews revenue and other financial results based on product division. During the six months period
ended 31 December2018, revenue of the foods division was Rs.4,121.53 million (2017 : Rs.3,961.28 million) and
Kitchen Division was Rs.8,019.40 million (2017 : Rs.7,006.60 million). Revenuefrom A1 amounted to Rs.3,651.86
million (2017: 2,469.92 million)

Half year ended

(Rupees in '000)

Under section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (as amended by the Finance Act, 2017), a tax shall be imposed at the 
rate of 5% of the accounting profit before tax on every public company, other than schedule bank or modaraba, that drives 
profit for a tax year but does not distribute at least 20% of its profits within six months of the end of the tax year through cash. 
The Board of Directors of the Holding Company will consider this matter before the authorization of annual financial 
statements for the year ending 30 June 2019. Hence, no tax consequences applicable on undistributed profit are recognised 
in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.
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____________________ ____________________ __________________
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director 
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31 December 31 December
2018 2017

13. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation 1,042,848                   548,557                     

233,287                       165,676                     
27,322                          24,483                       

112,681                       85,717                       
(20,175)                        (4,148)                        

(18,828)                        (12,503)                     
 Unrealised foreign exchange gains - net -                                  12,640                       

4,682                             2,427                          
Provision for doubtful debts 5,400                             50,000                       

13.1 (6,154)                           187,528                     
338,214                       511,819                     

Cash generated from operations 1,381,062                   1,060,376                 

13.1 Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
  Stores, spares and loose tools (13,507)                        (26,291)                     
  Stock in trade (280,797)                     (172,288)                   
  Trade debts 860,649                       20,726                       
  Advances 51,342                          (34,658)                     
  Deposits and prepayments (38,107)                        5,200                          
  Other receivables (61,342)                        84,770                       
Sales tax refundable 121,424                       40,633                       

639,663          (81,908)                     
 (Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities

  Trade and other payables (844,281)                     134,061                     
Sales tax payable 43,219                          135,375                     
Contract Liability 155,245                       -                              

(645,817)        269,436                     
(6,154)              187,528                     

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 460,173                       344,163                     
Running finance under mark up arrangements (1,217,198)                 (940,433)                   

(757,025)                     (596,270)                   

(Reversal against) / provision for slow moving and 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization on intangibles

obsolete stock

Retirement benefits expense

Working capital changes

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance cost

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items

15. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Relationship with the Company Nature of transaction

Associated Companies /
Undertakings Sale of goods 344,845 773,486 

Rent payment 2,262 
Rental income 4,744 2,400 
Commission expense 5,835 31,091 

Staff retirement funds Expense charged for 
       defined contribution plan 26,057 21,840 

Payments to retirement
       contribution plan 36,151 49,378 

Long term loan 19,055 47,637 

Key management personnel compensation:

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 300,477 215,572 

Retirement benefits 11,545 8,914 

Post retirement benefits
of Executive Directors 4,682 2,319 

Eligible dividend 7,549 6,437 

16. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for better presentation, where ever considered 
necessary, the effect of which is not material.

17. GENERAL

This condensed interim financial information has beenauthorised for issue on 19 February 2019, by the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company.

(Rupees in '000)
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